
TOWN OF ERIN
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA
 

March 17, 2015
7:30 PM

Municipal Council Chamber

Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Approval of Agenda

3. Declaration Pecuniary Interest

4. Community Announcements

5. Adoption of Minutes

5.1 March 3, 2015 Regular Council Meeting 1 - 6

6. Accounts

7. Delegations/Petitions/Presentations

7.1 Kathryn Cooper, Transition Erin and Maddie Swan, Erin Water
Rockers - Proposal for joint funding of refillable water stations at
community centres

7 - 10

8. Reports

8.1 Water

8.1.1 Water Superintendent - 2014 Drinking Water Systems
Summary Reports

11 - 50

8.1.2 Water Superintendent - W4-2015 Water Meter Reader
Position

51 - 52

8.2 Fire and Emergency Services

8.2.1 Fire Chief - January 2015 Monthly Report 53

8.3 Finance

8.3.1 Director of Finance - Tax Sale Extension Agreement 54 - 57

8.3.2 Resolution to provide maximum WSIB coverage for
Firefighters

8.4 Administration

8.4.1 CAO - Site Alteration By-law Report 58 - 82



8.5 Committees

8.5.1 Ballinafad Community Centre - February 10, 2015 meeting
minutes

83

9. Correspondence

9.1 Ted Arnott, Wellington-Halton Hills MPP - Letter to Minister of
Environment and Climate Change

84

9.2 Ted Arnott, Welington-Halton Hills MPP - Requesting Council support
to rename a portion of Hwy 6  to "Jack Johnson Memorial Highway"

85 - 89

10. New Business

10.1 Set Meeting Date(s) - Strategic initiatives and summer meetings

11. Closed Session
Matters under the following exemptions in the Municipal Act S. 239 (2) :

(b) personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or
local board employees; - HR Matter
(d) labour relations or employee negotiations - HR Matter
(e) litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative
tribunals, affecting the municipality or local board; - Labour relations matter

12. Return from Closed Session

12.1 Motion to Reconvene

12.2 Report Out

13. By-Laws 90 - 91
Appoint Meeting Investigator
Tax Arrears Extension Agreement

14. Notice of Motion

15. Adjournment



 
Minutes of the Regular Town of Erin Council Meeting 

 
March 3, 2015 

1:00 PM 
Municipal Council Chamber 

 
PRESENT: Allan Alls 

John Brennan 
Matt Sammut 
Rob Smith 
Jeff Duncan 

Mayor 
Councillor 
Councillor 
Councillor 
Councillor 

 
STAFF 
PRESENT: 

Kathryn Ironmonger 
Dina Lundy 

CAO/Town Manager 
Clerk 
 

 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Alls called the meeting to order. 
 

2. Approval of Agenda 
 

Resolution #   15-073 
Moved By  Councillor Brennan 
Seconded By  Councillor Duncan 
Be it resolved that the agenda be approved as circulated.  

Carried 
 

3. Declaration Pecuniary Interest 
None. 
 

4. Community Announcements 
March 28 - Station Road Nursery School Annual Bunny Brunch & Fundraiser, 
9am to noon at Centre 2000 Gymnasium 
 

5. Adoption of Minutes 
 

Resolution #   15-074 
Moved By  Councillor Sammut 
Seconded By  Councillor Smith 

1



March 3, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 

Be it resolved that Council hereby adopts the following meeting minutes as 
circulated: 
• February 17, 2015 Integrity Commissioner Reports and Code of Ethics 

Orientation 
• February 17, 2015 Regular Meeting 

Carried 
 

6. Accounts 
 

Resolution #   15-075 
Moved By  Councillor Brennan 
Seconded By  Councillor Smith 
Be it resolved that the accounts in the amount of $218,273.83 be paid. 

Carried 
 

7. Presentations 
 
7.1. Rudy Diemer - RKD Web Studios - Presentation of New Town 

Website 
 

Mr. Diemer gave Council a live presentation of the new Website which launched 
today.  The site has been modernized and is AA compliant for accessibility. 
 
Resolution #   15-076 
Moved By  Councillor Smith 
Seconded By  Councillor Sammut 
Be it resolved that Council receives the presentation of the new Town Website 
from Rudy Diemer of RKD Web Solutions. 

Carried 
 
 

8. Reports 
 

8.1. Administration 
 

8.1.1. Clerk - Procedural By-Law Recommendations 
 

Resolution #   15-077 
Moved By  Councillor Sammut 
Seconded By  Councillor Brennan 

 2 

2



March 3, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 

Be it resolved that Council receives the Clerk’s report “Proposed 
changes to the Procedural By-law”; 
 
And that Council supports the Clerk’s recommendation not to 
implement the proposed revisions as presented in resolution #15-
040 at the February 3, 2015 Council meeting. 

Carried 
 

8.2. Mayor  
 

8.2.1. ROMA/OGRA Conference - Verbal Update 
 

Mayor Alls gave a brief synopsis of his experience at the 
ROMA/OGRA Conference.  Councillors Duncan and Brennan also 
attended the conference.  There were several worthwhile 
workshops attended, as well as meetings with representatives from 
Infrastructure Ontario, OMAFRA, and the Ministry of Environment 
and Climate Change.   
 

8.3. Committees 
 

8.3.1. Ballinafad Community Centre - December 17, 2014 and 
January 13, 2015 Meeting Minutes 

 
Resolution #   15-078 
Moved By  Councillor Sammut 
Seconded By  Councillor Smith 
Be it resolved that Council receives the Ballinafad Community 
Centre December 17, 2014 and January 13, 2015 meeting minutes. 

Carried 
 

9. Correspondence 
 

Resolution #   15-079 
Moved By  Councillor Brennan 
Seconded By  Councillor Smith 
Be it resolved that Council receives the correspondence items 9.1 and 9.2 for 
information. 

Carried 
 

 3 

3



March 3, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 

Resolution #   15-080 
Moved By  Councillor Brennan 
Seconded By  Councillor Sammut 
Be it resolved that Council receives the correspondence from the Town of 
Aurora; 
 
And that Council supports the Town of Aurora resolution and Bill 52, Protection 
of Public Participation Act, which should help protect and encourage freedom of 
expression on matters of the public interest and discourage the use of the courts 
in ways that unduly limit that freedom. 

Carried 
 

10. Closed Session 
 

Resolution #   15-081 
Moved By  Councillor Smith 
Seconded By  Councillor Brennan 
Be it resolved that Council adjourns the meeting to proceed into a closed 
session at the hour of 2:00 pm to discuss matters under the following exemptions 
in the Municipal Act S. 239 (2) : 
(b) personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local 
board employees; 
(d) labour relations or employee negotiations 
HR Matters (2) 

Carried 
 

11. Return from Closed Session 
 

11.1. Motion to Reconvene 
 

Resolution #   15-082 
Moved By  Councillor Duncan 
Seconded By  Councillor Smith 
Be it resolved that the meeting be reconvened at the hour of 3:05 pm. 

Carried 
 

11.2. Report Out 
None. 
 

***Added Item*** 

 4 

4



March 3, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 

11.3. Water Report 
 

Resolution #   15-083 (verbal) 
Moved By  Councillor Brennan 
Seconded By  Councillor Duncan 
Be it resolved that Council amends the agenda to allow an urgent 
briefing from the water department regarding frozen water lines. 

Carried 
 

The Compliance Administrator informed Council of a potential emergency 
situation.  They are asking residents to run one cold water tap in their 
homes to the thickness of a pencil to avoid additional properties with 
frozen water lines, and to ensure that the water is draining.  Over 20 
properties have experienced the problem, and the situation is 
worsening.  The water department is asking that owners call or email their 
meter readings to assist with billing.  Notices have been sent out to 
properties in specific areas with current issues today.  The notice has 
been posted on the website and the local radio station contacted.  The 
water department will closely monitor the situation and will advise the 
public when the risk is over. 
 

12. By-Laws 
 

Resolution #   15-084 
Moved By  Councillor Brennan 
Seconded By  Councillor Duncan 
Be it resolved that By-Law numbers 15 –08    to 15 -10  inclusive, are hereby 
passed. 

Carried 
 

13. Notice of Motion 
None. 
 

14. Adjournment 
 

Resolution #   15-085 
Moved By  Councillor Duncan 
Seconded By  Councillor Smith 
Be it resolved that the meeting be adjourned at the hour of 3:18 pm. 

Carried 

 5 

5



March 3, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 

 
 
 

_________________________ 
Mayor 

 
 

_________________________ 
Clerk 

 
 

 6 

6



7



8



Crowd Funding of Reusable
Bottle Refilling Stations

Maddie Swan, Erin Water Rockers

Kathryn Cooper, Transition Erin

Community Partnership = Value for
Money
. Transition Erin and Erin Water Rockers are willing to

lead a crowd funding campaign to raise money for
50% of the installed cost of centrally located water
bottle refilling stations (1 in each arena).

Benefits:

- Meets the Community's Needs.

- Unique "Place Based" Learning for Erin Students.

- Demonstrates pilot for future "Community Partnerships"

- Potentialto save the Town money (reduced waste,
electricity).

9



Our Ask -

. Would Council partner with us to:

1. determine the "installed" cost of the two
refillable bottle water filling stations,

2. endorse our Crowd Funding Campaign to raise
money in the community to pay for 5A% of the
cost, and

3. put the other 5O% of the cost in the Town
budget.

Effective Recycling Saves Money

. Would Council support an effective recycling
program at the arenas?

. Transition Erin and Erin Water Rockers are willing to
help:

- marketing of an effective recycling program and

- measuring and publicizing the ongoing success of the
program.

10



 

Staff Report 

 

Report #:   W3-2015            
 
Date:    March-17-15     
 
Submitted By: Sara McDougall 
      
 

Subject: 2014 Drinking Water Systems Summary Reports  
 
 

 

Recommendations: 

 

Be it resolved that Council hereby receives the 2014 Water Summary Reports dated 

February 24, 2015 for the Erin Well Supply System No. 220000013 and February 20, 2015 for 

the Hillsburgh Well Supply System No. 220007285. 

 

 

Background: 

 

Under O.Reg.170/03 of the Safe Drinking Water Act, a Summary Report for each Drinking 

Water System is required to be prepared by March 31, 2015.  This report is for the period of 

January 1 to December 31 of the previous year and must meet the following requirements: 

 The report must, 

(a) list the requirements of the Act, the regulations, the system’s approval, drinking 

water works permit, municipal drinking water licence, and any orders applicable to 

the system that were not met at any time during the period covered by the report; and 

(b) for each requirement referred to in clause (a) that was not met, specify the duration 

of the failure and the measures that were taken to correct the failure. 

(3)  The report must also include the following information for the purpose of enabling 

the owner of the system to assess the capability of the system to meet existing and planned uses 

of the system: 

1. A summary of the quantities and flow rates of the water supplied during the period 

covered by the report, including monthly average and maximum daily flows. 

2. A comparison of the summary referred to in paragraph 1 to the rated capacity and 

flow rates approved in the system’s approval, drinking water works permit or 

municipal drinking water licence, or if the system is receiving all of its water from 

another system under an agreement pursuant to subsection 5 (4), to the flow rates 

specified in the written agreement. 

11



 
 

(4)  If a report is prepared under subsection (1) for a system that supplies water to a 

municipality under the terms of a contract, the owner of the system shall give a copy of the 

report to the municipality by March 31. 

 

Financial Impact: 

 

None 

 

Consultation: 

 

Water Department Staff 

 

Communications Plan: 

 

Council Report, will be available on the Town’s Website and will be stored in the Compliance 

Administrator’s office. 

 

 

Conclusion: 

 

In accordance with O.Reg. 170/03 of the Safe Drinking Water Act, the 2014 Summary 

Reports for the Erin Drinking Water System and the Hillsburgh Drinking Water System were 

completed in February 2015. 

 

 

Appendices: 

 

Appendix A:  2014 Erin Drinking Water System Summary Report 

Appendix B:  2014 Hillsburgh Drinking Water System Summary Report 

 

 

12



 
 
 

SUMMARY REPORT 
TOWN OF ERIN  

 
ERIN WELL SUPPLY 

DRINKING –WATER SYSTEM NO.  220000013 
 

Municipal Drinking Water License Number 102-101 
Drinking Water Works Permit Number 102-201 

 
PTTW# 8112-9CPNNW 

 
 
 

……………………………………………………………… 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by:  Joe Babin 
Water Superintendent 

   
Signature:  _____________________ 

   
Date:  February 24, 2014 

Prepared by:  Sara McDougall 
 
  

13



 1 

 
 

SUMMARY REPORT FOR 
THE TOWN OF ERIN 
ERIN WELL SUPPLY 

 
Ministry of Environment 

Municipal Drinking Water License Number 102-101 
Drinking Water Works Permit Number 102-201 

 
PTTW# 8112-9CPNNW 

Table of Contents 
 

Section 1 – Introduction ................................................................................................. 2 
 
Section 2 – Background ................................................................................................. 2 
 
Section 3 – External Audit & MOE Inspections ............................................................ 3 
 
Section 4 – Statement of Compliance ............................................................................ 3 
 
Section 5 – Summaries of Quantities and Flow Rates and Water Supply ..................... 4 
 
Section 6 – Summary and Conclusion ........................................................................... 5 
 
Appendix 1- O. Reg. 170/03 Schedule 22 ...................................................................... 6 
 
Appendix 2 - Regulations under the Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002………………….7 
 
Appendix 3 - MOE Inspection Results and Scoring ...................................................... 8 
 
Appendix 4 - MOE Action Item Response………………………………………...…11 

 
Appendix 5 - SAI Global External 12 Month Surveillance Audit Results………...…12 

 
 

 
 
 
  

14



 2 

Section 1 – Introduction 
 
The 2014 Erin Well Supply Summary Report addresses the requirements outlined in 
Schedule 22 of the Ontario Drinking Water Systems Regulation (O. Reg. 170/03) under 
the Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002.  For purposes of that regulation, the Town of Erin - 
Erin Well Supply is considered to be a large municipal residential system.   
 
The summary report identifies Erin Well Supply’s Licenses and Permits, and includes a 
statement of compliance with the terms and conditions of the Drinking Water Works 
Permits, Municipal Drinking Water Licenses, Permits to Take Water and the drinking 
water regulations under the Safe Drinking Water Act.  The report also includes a 
summary of the quantities and flow rates of water supplied, including monthly average 
and maximum daily flows during the period from January 1st to December 31st, 2014. 
 
A copy of Schedule 22 from O.Reg. 170/03 is in Appendix 1 of this report. 

Section 2 – Background 
 
In 2002, the Safe Drinking Water Act was passed by the Ontario government, and by 
2003, all municipal and non-municipal drinking water systems in Ontario were governed 
by this Act and its Regulations.   
 
A list of the Regulations enacted under the Safe Drinking Water Act can be found in 
Appendix 2 of this report. 
 
The reporting period for this report is January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014. 
 
The Town of Erin continues to operate our water systems through adherence to our 
Municipal Drinking Water License and our Drinking Water Works Permit.  The 
Municipal Drinking Water License provides the required legislative authority to operate 
the system, and the Drinking Water Works Permit provides the descriptive scope of our 
water system and the authority to establish and alter the system. 
 
During the reporting period, the Town of Erin – Erin Well Supply was operated pursuant 
to: 

• Municipal Drinking Water License Number 102-101, issued December 20, 2010; 
once issued, a condition on the license revokes all C of A’s which were previously 
issued for the drinking water system. 

• Drinking Water Works Permit Number 102-201, issued December 20, 2010 
 
Both our license and our permit were issued through our demonstration of compliance to 
the Drinking Water Quality Management Standard (DWQMS). 
 
DWQMS 
 
The Standard contains 21 Elements which specify the minimum requirements for the 
Quality Management System of an Operating Authority for a subject system: 
 

a. to facilitate the Operating authority’s ability to consistently produce and/or 
deliver drinking water that meets applicable legislative, regulatory and 
Owner requirements, and 

b. to enhance consumer protection through the effective application and 
continual improvement of the Quality Management System. 

 
  

15



 3 

Operational Plan 
 
Our adopted Quality Management System (QMS) Operational Plan continues to govern 
the water system in assuring conformance to the Standard and continuous operational 
improvements. 
 
A portion of this required conformance is included in the Financial Plan submitted under 
O. Reg. 453/07. We must fulfill our submitted financial commitment to infrastructure 
renewal and utility operations in a demonstrated life cycle based full cost recovery model. 
 
Copies of our QMS Operational Plan are available at the Municipal Office. 

Section 3 – External Audit & MOE Inspections 
 
On October 7, 2014 the Ministry of Environment (MOE) conducted an inspection of the 
Erin Well Supply System for the period of August 1, 2013 – September 15, 2014. The 
inspection included a review of operational standards and procedures, record keeping, 
sampling protocols, status of operator’s licensing, training initiatives and a random field 
test for the analysis of system free chlorine residual in conjunction with joint 
microbiological water sample collections.  
 
This inspection provided a scoring of 100% in meeting all legislative requirements of the 
Safe Drinking Water Act and associated regulations under the act.  
 
The final inspection scoring; non-compliance with regulatory requirements and actions 
required; and summary of best practice issues and recommendations for this inspection 
period are included in Appendix 3. 
 
On December 10th, 2014 SAI Global conducted an external off-site system verification 
audit of the Town of Erin’s Quality Management System.  This audit resulted in zero 
non-conformances and two opportunities for improvement.  SAI Global’s 
recommendation is: Maintenance of existing accreditation. The results of the external off-
site system verification audit are included in Appendix 4. 
 
 

Section 4 – Statement of Compliance 
 
The Erin Well Supply System complied with the terms and conditions of all Licenses and 
Permits, Ontario Drinking Water Quality Standards Regulation (O. Reg. 169/03), and the 
Drinking Water Systems Regulation (O. Reg. 170/03) with the exception of those events 
detailed in Appendix 3, 4 and 5 of this report. 
 
  

16



 4 

Section 5 – Summaries of Quantities and Flow Rates and Water Supply 
The following table is a summary of flows for the reporting period of January 1 – December 31, 2014. 

Table 1 

E7 Total Flow Average Day Max Day Max Flow Rate  

Date Raw m³ Treated m³ Raw m³ Treated 
m³ 

Raw m³ 
(rated 

capacity = 
2160 m³/day) 

Treated m³  
(rated 

capacity = 
2592 m³/day) 

Raw L/min 
(rated 

capacity = 
1,800 L/min) 

Treated 
L/min 

January 10036.033 10318.965 323.743 332.870 774.575 863.282 1458.26 1454.56 
February 8771.310 8961.116 313.261 320.040 598.086 621.243 1454.02 1485.50 
March 12083.954 12380.661 389.805 399.376 625.287 621.246 1449.43 1509.34 
April 8876.315 9108.189 295.877 303.606 612.753 573.110 1453.40 1504.19 
May 12197.724 12510.781 393.475 403.574 1076.590 1018.280 1451.98 1468.10 
June 28890.134 29288.204 963.005 976.274 1477.630 1521.070 1459.37 1582.17 
July 25136.771 25307.757 810.864 816.379 1670.070 1701.310 1457.66 1417.19 
August 8735.818 8880.530 281.801 286.469 775.920 776.396 1449.50 1465.52 
September 8267.722 8502.099 275.591 283.403 630.141 633.173 1451.48 1417.83 
October 7399.326 7450.325 238.688 240.333 594.130 583.910 1440.73 1426.85 
November 10054.489 10515.734 335.150 350.525 708.588 664.088 1448.97 1413.32 
December 6224.832 6238.998 200.801 201.258 680.413 642.731 1439.07 1455.85 
Total 146674.4 149463.4       

E8 Total Flow Average Day Max Day Max Flow Rate  

Date Raw m³ Treated m³ Raw m³ Treated 
m³ 

Raw m³ 
(rated 

capacity = 
1968 m³/day) 

Treated m³  
(rated 

capacity = 
2362 m³/day) 

Raw L/min 
(rated 

capacity = 
1,640 L/min) 

Treated 
L/min 

January 12708.012 12529.123 409.936 404.165 618.206 637.981 1275.86 1201.61 
February 11634.329 11357.765 415.512 405.635 747.573 694.740 1271.93 1258.32 
March 13191.589 12888.047 425.535 415.744 850.303 836.146 1270.31 1262.98 
April 12750.327 12497.322 425.011 416.577 715.286 697.181 1274.19 1313.49 
May 16449.711 16231.173 530.636 523.586 1042.310 1038.020 1271.52 1275.24 
June 29272.882 29626.046 975.763 987.535 1306.270 1180.470 1237.38 911.44 
July 28528.390 28536.255 920.271 920.524 1716.390 1503.620 1273.77 1585.72 
August 14669.778 14595.465 473.219 470.822 919.699 977.523 1272.59 1284.99 
September 12281.857 12017.231 409.395 400.574 733.286 747.146 1270.44 1178.13 
October 13384.579 13014.019 431.761 419.807 796.961 730.687 1266.40 948.66 
November 9097.172 9246.984 303.239 308.233 711.857 882.036 1260.20 1073.10 
December 14337.519 14400.507 462.501 464.533 778.952 980.412 1261.23 1173.95 
Total 188306.1 186939.9       

 
The following table is a summary of the flow rates and the rated capacity flow rates approved in the 
system’s approval. 

Table 2 
E7 Peak Day Flow (m³/day) Rated Capacity (m³/day) Percent Rated Capacity (%) 

 Raw Treated Raw Treated Raw Treated 
January 774.575 863.282 2160 2592 35.9% 33.3% 
February 598.086 621.243 2160 2592 27.7% 24.0% 
March 625.287 621.246 2160 2592 28.9% 24.0% 
April 612.753 573.110 2160 2592 28.4% 22.1% 
May 1076.590 1018.280 2160 2592 49.8% 39.3% 
June 1477.630 1521.070 2160 2592 68.4% 58.7% 
July 1670.070 1701.310 2160 2592 77.3% 65.6% 
August 775.920 776.396 2160 2592 35.9% 30.0% 
September 630.141 633.173 2160 2592 29.2% 24.4% 
October 594.130 583.910 2160 2592 27.5% 22.5% 
November 708.588 664.088 2160 2592 32.8% 25.6% 
December 680.413 642.731 2160 2592 31.5% 24.8% 

 
 

17



 5 

Table 2 continued 
E8 Peak Day Flow (m³/day) Rated Capacity (m³/day) Percent Rated Capacity (%) 

 Raw Treated Raw Treated Raw Treated 
January 618.206 637.981 1968 2362 31.4% 27.0% 
February 747.573 694.740 1968 2362 38.0% 29.4% 

March 850.303 836.146 1968 2362 43.2% 35.4% 
April 715.286 697.181 1968 2362 36.3% 29.5% 
May 1042.310 1038.020 1968 2362 53.0% 43.9% 
June 1306.270 1180.470 1968 2362 66.4% 50.0% 
July 1716.390 1503.620 1968 2362 87.2% 63.7% 

August 919.699 977.523 1968 2362 46.7% 41.4% 
September 733.286 747.146 1968 2362 37.3% 31.6% 

October 796.961 730.687 1968 2362 40.5% 30.9% 
November 711.857 882.036 1968 2362 36.2% 37.3% 
December 778.952 980.412 1968 2362 39.6% 41.5% 

Section 6 – Summary and Conclusion 
 
Table 3 provides information with respect to the quantity and flow rates of water supplied 
to the system during the reporting period.  
 
1. The monthly average taking for all wells individually and for all wells combined, the 

maximum daily taking from each well individually and from all wells combined, and 
the daily instantaneous peak flow rate for each well and for all wells combined.  
There are footnotes to the table that provide additional information regarding the data.  

 
Table 3 

Town of Erin, Erin Well Supply 
Pumping Volume % Flow Summary 

(January 1 to December 31, 2014) 

Raw Well 
Monthly 
Average 
(m³/mo.) 

Approved 
Rated 

Capacity 
(m³/month) 

Maximum 
Daily Flow 

(m³/day)  

Approved 
Rated 

Capacity 
(m³/day)¹ 

Maximum 
Daily 

Instantaneous 
Peak Flow 

Rate 
(L/min.)    

Approved 
Rated 

Capacity 
(L/min)¹ 

E7  12222.87 65,700 1670.07 2,160 1459.37 1,800 
E8  15692.18 59,860 1716.39 1,968 1275.86 1,640 

Combined 
Wells:  27915.05 125,560  4,128 N/A N/A 

1. Based on water taking rates and amounts specified in Table A of  PTTW # 8112-9CPNNW. 
 
In conclusion, E7 is pumping at a 19.0% average of the approved rated capacity of 
65,700 m³ per month, and E8 is pumping at a 26.0% average of the approved rated 
capacity of 59,860 m³ per month.  The Erin Well Supply system is pumping at an average 
of 22.0% of the approved rated capacity of 125,560 m³ per month.  
 
This report will be given to the members of the Town of Erin Council on or before March 
31, 2015, as required by Section 22-2 (1) (a) of Schedule 22 of O. Reg 170/03, as 
amended.  It will be circulated to Council as an information item on the first available 
agenda following the date completed to formally put the report on the public record.  The 
report is available to the public at no cost, and will be posted on the Town’s website. 

18



 6 

Appendix 1 
SCHEDULE 22 

SUMMARY REPORTS FOR MUNICIPALITIES 

Municipal:  Large Residential 
Small Residential 

Application 
22-1.  This Schedule applies to the following drinking water systems: 

1. Large municipal residential systems. 

2. Small municipal residential systems. 

Report 
22-2.  (1)  The owner of a drinking water system shall ensure that, not later than March 31 

of each year after 2003, a report is prepared in accordance with subsections (2) and (3) for the 
preceding calendar year and is given to, 

(a) in the case of a drinking water system owned by a municipality, the members of the 
municipal council; 

(b) in the case of a drinking water system owned by a municipal service board established 
under section 195 of the Municipal Act, 2001, the members of the municipal service 
board; or  

(c) in the case of a drinking water system owned by a corporation, the board of directors 
of the corporation. 

(2)  The report must, 

(a) list the requirements of the Act, the regulations, the system’s approval, drinking water 
works permit, municipal drinking water licence, and any orders applicable to the 
system that were not met at any time during the period covered by the report; and 

(b) for each requirement referred to in clause (a) that was not met, specify the duration of 
the failure and the measures that were taken to correct the failure. 

(3)  The report must also include the following information for the purpose of enabling the 
owner of the system to assess the capability of the system to meet existing and planned uses of 
the system: 

1. A summary of the quantities and flow rates of the water supplied during the period 
covered by the report, including monthly average and maximum daily flows. 

2. A comparison of the summary referred to in paragraph 1 to the rated capacity and flow 
rates approved in the system’s approval, drinking water works permit or municipal 
drinking water licence, or if the system is receiving all of its water from another 
system under an agreement pursuant to subsection 5 (4), to the flow rates specified in 
the written agreement. 

(4)  If a report is prepared under subsection (1) for a system that supplies water to a 
municipality under the terms of a contract, the owner of the system shall give a copy of the report 
to the municipality by March 31. 

(5)  Revoked: O. Reg. 253/05, s. 18. 

OWRA approvals 
22-3.  A provision of an OWRA approval that requires the completion and presentation of 

a compliance report does not apply to a drinking water system if the owner of the system 
complies with section 22-2. 

O. Reg. 170/03, Sched. 22; O. Reg. 249/03, s. 24; O. Reg. 253/05, s. 18; O. Reg. 418/09, s. 26. 

19

http://www.e-laws.gov.on.ca/html/regs/french/elaws_regs_030170_f.htm


 7 

Appendix 2 
 

Regulations under the Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002 
 
 

O. Reg. 128/04: Certification of Drinking Water System Operators and 
Water Quality Analysts 
 
O. Reg. 169/03: Ontario Drinking Water Quality Standards 
 
O. Reg. 170/03: Drinking Water Systems 
 
O. Reg. 171/03: Definitions of Words and Expressions Used in the Act 
 
O. Reg. 172/03: Definitions of Deficiency and Municipal Drinking Water System 
 
O. Reg. 188/07: Licensing of Municipal Drinking Water Systems 
 
O. Reg.  242/05: Compliance and Enforcement 
 
O. Reg.  243/07: Schools Private Schools and Day Nurseries 
 
O. Reg.  248/03: Drinking Water Testing Services 
 
O. Reg.  453/07: The Financial Plans Regulation 
 
O. Reg.  229/07: Service of Documents 
 
  

20



 8 

Appendix 3 
 

Ministry of the Environment 
Inspection Report 

 

 
 

NON-COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS AND 
ACTIONS REQUIRED 

 
This section provides a summary of all non-compliance with regulatory requirements 
identified during the inspection period, as well as actions required to address these 
issues. Further details pertaining to these items can be found in the body of the 
inspection report. 

 

1. Operators were not examining continuous monitoring test results or they 
were not examining the results within 72 hours of the test. 

 
The continuous monitoring data is recorded every five minutes at the site, as 
required under Schedule 6-5 (1) of O. Reg. 170/03. The operator download the 
data from the site RPU to the laptap every 48 -72 hours.  During the data review it 
was noticed that the continuous analyzer data was missing for the days September 
21st as well as 28th, 2013, but the operator did not make any record regarding 
noticing the abnormality in the downloaded data, contradicting the Section 6-5(1)3 
of Schedule 6 of O.Reg 170/03. 

 

As mentioned earlier, the data was missed due to the SCADA communication loss and was 
fixed by 
Selog Norteck inc. on October 4th, 2013. 

 

Action(s) Required: 
Actions Required: The ORO is required to review the incident, prepare a report 
regarding the procedure which should have been followed and outline the steps 
being implemented so that any abnormalities in the data recorded are noticed, 
recorded within 72 hours and the actions are taken to rectify the situation as soon 
as reasonably possible. The ORO is required to send a copy of the above 
mentioned report to the author of this inspection report by December 31st, 2014. 

 
 

Report Generated for dhesima 
Site #:   220000013 
ERIN DRINKING WATER SYSTEM 
 
on 12/11/2014 (dd/mm/yyyy) 
 
Page 13 of 15 
 

Date of Inspection:  07/10/2014 (dd/mm/yyyy) 

 
 

 
 

  

21



 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

22



 10 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23



 11 

Appendix 4 

 

24



 12 

Appendix 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25



 13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

26



 14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

27



 15 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

28



 16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29



 17 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30



 18 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

31



 
 
 

SUMMARY REPORT 
TOWN OF ERIN  

 
HILLSBURGH WELL SUPPLY 

DRINKING –WATER SYSTEM NO.  220007285 
 
 
 
 

Municipal Drinking Water License Number 102-102 
Drinking Water Works Permit Number 102-202 

PTTW # 6306-8X5KRY 
PTTW # 8548-6SBGWC 

 
 
 

……………………………………………………………… 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by:  Joe Babin 
Water Superintendent 

   
Signature:  _____________________ 

   
Date:  February 20, 2015 

Prepared by:  Sara McDougall 
 

32



 1 

 

 
 

SUMMARY REPORT FOR 
THE TOWN OF ERIN 

HILLSBURGH WELL SUPPLY 

 
Ministry of Environment 

Municipal Drinking Water License Number 102-102 
Drinking Water Works Permit Number 102-202 

Permit to Take Water No. 6306-8X5KRY 
Permit to Take Water No. 8548-6SBGWC 

Table of Contents 
 

Section 1 – Introduction ................................................................................................. 2 
 
Section 2 – Background ................................................................................................. 2 
 
Section 3 – External Audit & MOE Inspections ............................................................ 3 
 
Section 4 – Statement Of Compliance ........................................................................... 3 
 
Section 5 – Summaries of Quantities and Flow Rates and Water Supply ..................... 4 
 
Section 6 – Summary and Conclusion ........................................................................... 6 
 
Appendix 1 - O. Reg. 170/03 Schedule 22 ..................................................................... 7 
 
Appendix 2 – Regulations under the Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002 ............................ 8 
 
Appendix 3 – MOE Inspection Results and Scoring ...................................................... 9 

 
    Appendix 4 – SAI Global External 12 Month Surveillance Audit Results…………...12 
 
 
  

33



 2 

Section 1 – Introduction 
 
The 2014 Hillsburgh Well Supply Summary Report addresses the requirements outlined 
in Schedule 22 of the Ontario Drinking Water Systems Regulation (O. Reg. 170/03) 
under the Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002.  For purposes of that regulation, the Town of 
Erin - Hillsburgh Well Supply is considered to be a large municipal residential system.   
 
The summary report identifies Hillsburgh Well Supply’s Licenses and Permits, and 
includes a statement of compliance with the terms and conditions of the Drinking Water 
Works Permits, Municipal Drinking Water Licenses, Permits to Take Water and the 
drinking water regulations under the Safe Drinking Water Act.  The report also includes a 
summary of the quantities and flow rates of water supplied, including monthly average 
and maximum daily flows during the period from January 1st to December 31st, 2014. 
 
A copy of Schedule 22 from O.Reg. 170/03 is in Appendix 1 of this report. 

Section 2 – Background 
 
In 2002, the Safe Drinking Water Act was passed by the Ontario government, and by 
2003, all municipal and non-municipal drinking water systems in Ontario were governed 
by this Act and its Regulations.   
 
A list of the Regulations enacted under the Safe Drinking Water Act can be found in 
Appendix 2 of this report. 
 
The reporting period for this report is January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014. 
 
The Town of Erin continues to operate our water systems through adherence to our 
Municipal Drinking Water License and our Drinking Water Works Permit.  The 
Municipal Drinking Water License provides the required legislative authority to operate 
the system, and the Drinking Water Works Permit provides the descriptive scope of our 
water system and the authority to establish and alter the system. 
 
During the reporting period, the Town of Erin – Hillsburgh Well Supply was operated 
pursuant to: 

• Municipal Drinking Water License Number 102-102, issued December 20, 2010; 
once issued, a condition on the license revokes all C of A’s which were previously 
issued for the drinking water system. 
 

• Drinking Water Works Permit Number 102-202, issued December 20, 2010 
 
Both our license and our permit were issued through our demonstration of compliance to 
the Drinking Water Quality Management Standard (DWQMS). 
 
DWQMS 
 
The Standard contains 21 Elements which specify the minimum requirements for the 
Quality Management System of an Operating Authority for a subject system: 
 

a. to facilitate the Operating authority’s ability to consistently produce and/or 
deliver drinking water that meets applicable legislative, regulatory and 
Owner requirements, and 

b. to enhance consumer protection through the effective application and 
continual improvement of the Quality Management System. 

 

34



 3 

Operational Plan 
 
Our adopted Quality Management System (QMS) Operational Plan continues to govern 
the water system in assuring conformance to the Standard and continuous operational 
improvements. 
 
A portion of this required conformance is included in the Financial Plan submitted under 
O. Reg. 453/07. We must fulfill our submitted financial commitment to infrastructure 
renewal and utility operations in a demonstrated life cycle based full cost recovery model. 
 
Copies of our QMS Operational Plan are available at the Municipal Office. 

Section 3 – External Audit & MOE Inspections 
 
On September 10, 2014 the Ministry of Environment conducted an inspection of the 
Hillsburgh Well Supply System for the period of October 1, 2013 – August 15, 2014. The 
inspection included a review of operational standards and procedures, record keeping, 
sampling protocols, status of operator’s licensing, training initiatives and a random field 
test for the analysis of system free chlorine residual in conjunction with joint 
microbiological water sample collections.  
 
This audit provided a scoring of 100% in meeting all legislative requirements of the Safe 
Drinking Water Act and associated regulations under the act.  
 
The summary of best practice issues and recommendation, and the final inspection 
scoring for this inspection period are included in Appendix 3. 
 
On December 10th, 2014 SAI Global conducted an external off-site system verification 
audit of the Town of Erin’s Quality Management System.  This audit resulted in zero 
non-conformances and two opportunities for improvement.  SAI Global’s 
recommendation is: Maintenance of existing accreditation. The results of the external off-
site system verification audit are included in Appendix 4. 
 

Section 4 – Statement of Compliance 
 
The Hillsburgh Well Supply System complied with the terms and conditions of all 
Licenses and Permits, Ontario Drinking Water Quality Standards Regulation (O. Reg. 
169/03), and the Drinking Water Systems Regulation (O. Reg. 170/03). 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

35



 4 

Section 5 – Summaries of Quantities and Flow Rates and Water Supply 
The following table is a summary of flows for the reporting period of January 1 – 
December 31, 2014. 

Table 1 

HH Total Flow Average Day Max Day Max Flow Rate  

Date Raw m³ Treated m³ Raw m³ Treated 
m³ 

Raw m³ 
(rated 

capacity = 
982 m³/day) 

Treated m³  
(rated capacity = 

1011 m³/day) 

Raw L/min 
(rated 

capacity = 
682 L/min) 

Treated 
L/sec 

January 4237.497 3292.102 136.693 106.197 253.128 130.065 664.547 3.681 
February 1460.111 1010.245 52.147 36.080 196.619 55.088 664.098 2.720 
March 1805.313 1096.645 58.236 35.376 210.484 51.374 654.86 2.200 
April 1628.711 1377.063 54.290 45.902 205.874 61.272 659.833 35.790 
May 1964.099 3171.934 63.358 102.320 226.447 172.560 665.84 34.110 
June 2599.260 3722.367 86.642 124.079 223.954 171.524 657.384 27.690 
July 1807.314 2657.123 58.300 85.714 223.500 131.081 654.879 10.690 
August 2460.552 3287.484 79.373 106.048 229.220 185.828 650.518 5.770 
September 1656.289 2727.021 55.21 90.901 217.635 127.560 662.697 3.920 
October 1818.699 2851.337 58.668 91.979 204.785 111.697 659.746 18.360 
November 1780.296 2716.698 59.343 90.557 205.418 112.254 643.683 8.920 
December 1794.395 3161.520 57.884 101.985 193.611 135.491 645.961 15.860 
Total 25012.54 31071.54       

GD Total Flow Average Day Max Day Max Flow Rate  

Date Raw m³ Treated m³ Raw m³ Treated 
m³ 

Raw m³ 
(rated 

capacity = 
655 m³/day) 

Treated m³  
(rated capacity = 

654 m³/day) 

Raw L/min 
(rated 

capacity = 
454 L/min) 

Treated 
L/min 

January 301.684 218.051 25.140 18.171 103.714 88.970 448.283 162.863 
February 2509.526 2653.721 89.626 94.776 179.137 113.808 444.62 752.09 
March 2650.535 2913.899 85.501 93.997 105.332 116.105 442.225 229.90 
April 2704.481 2979.512 90.149 99.317 112.458 121.475 438.025 503.74 
May 3416.357 3714.188 110.205 119.813 194.424 208.922 434.181 874.27 
June 3260.018 3562.647 108.667 118.755 160.110 178.091 416.699 776.70 
July 3161.240 3426.898 101.976 110.545 263.744 273.125 404.966 476.96 
August 2737.311 2769.457 88.300 89.337 183.945 135.388 400.233 742.13 
September 2610.484 2851.703 87.016 95.057 124.074 136.115 393.711 755.34 
October 2371.445 2563.704 76.498 82.700 105.643 114.560 394.849 407.65 
November 2576.371 2752.663 85.879 91.755 334.641 352.075 371.496 360.76 
December 3090.327 3318.856 99.688 107.060 323.642 337.878 390.138 375.41 
Total 31389.78 33725.3       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

36



 5 

The following table is a summary of the flow rates and the rated capacity flow rates 
approved in the system’s approval. 
 

Table 2 
HH Peak Day Flow 

(m³/day) 
Rated Capacity (m³/day) Percent Rated Capacity (%) 

 Raw Treated Raw Treated Raw Treated 
January 253.128 130.065 982 1011 25.78% 12.86% 
February 196.619 55.088 982 1011 20.02% 5.45% 
March 210.484 51.374 982 1011 21.43% 5.08% 
April 205.874 61.272 982 1011 20.96% 6.06% 
May 226.447 172.560 982 1011 23.06% 17.07% 
June 223.954 171.524 982 1011 22.81% 16.97% 
July 223.500 131.081 982 1011 22.76% 12.97% 
August 229.220 185.828 982 1011 23.34% 18.38% 
September 217.635 127.560 982 1011 22.16% 12.62% 
October 204.785 111.697 982 1011 20.85% 11.05% 
November 205.418 112.254 982 1011 20.92% 11.10% 
December 193.611 135.491 982 1011 19.72% 13.40% 

 
GD Peak Day Flow 

(m³/day) 
Rated Capacity (m³/day) Percent Rated Capacity (%) 

 Raw Treated Raw Treated Raw Treated 
January 103.714 88.970 655 654 15.83% 13.60% 
February 179.137 113.808 655 654 27.35% 17.40% 
March 105.332 116.105 655 654 16.08% 11.48% 
April 112.458 121.475 655 654 17.17% 12.02% 
May 194.424 208.922 655 654 29.68% 20.66% 
June 160.110 178.091 655 654 24.44% 27.23% 
July 263.744 273.125 655 654 40.27% 27.02% 
August 183.945 135.388 655 654 28.08% 20.70% 
September 124.074 136.115 655 654 18.94% 13.46% 
October 105.643 114.560 655 654 16.13% 17.52% 
November 334.641 352.075 655 654 51.09% 53.83% 
December 323.642 337.878 655 654 49.41% 51.66% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

37



 6 

Section 6 – Summary and Conclusion 
 
Table 3 provides information with respect to the quantity and flow rates of water supplied 
to the system during the reporting period.  
 
1. The monthly average taking for all wells individually and for all wells combined, the 

maximum daily taking from each well individually and from all wells combined, and 
the daily instantaneous peak flow rate for each well and for all wells combined.  
There are footnotes to the table that provide additional information regarding the data.  

 
Table 3 

Town of Erin, Hillsburgh Well Supply 
Pumping Volume % Flow Summary 

(January 1 to December 31, 2014) 

Raw Well 
Monthly 
Average 
(m³/mo.) 

Approved 
Rated 

Capacity 
(m³/month) 

Maximum 
Daily Flow 

(m³/day)  

Approved 
Rated 

Capacity 
(m³/day)¹ 

Maximum 
Daily 

Instantaneous 
Peak Flow 

Rate 
(L/min.)  

Approved 
Rated 

Capacity 
(L/min)¹ 

HH  2084.38 29869 253.13 982 665.84 682 
GD  2615.82 19923 334.64 655 448.28 454 

Combined 
Wells:  4700.2 49792  1,637 N/A N/A 

1. Based on water taking rates and amounts specified in Table A of PTTW # 8548-6SBGWC & PTTW # 6306-8X5KRY 
 
In conclusion, HH is pumping at a 7.0% average of the approved rated capacity of 29,869 
m³ per month, and GD is pumping at a 13.1% average of the approved rated capacity of 
19,923 m³ per month.  The Hillsburgh Well Supply system is pumping at an average 
9.4% of the approved rated capacity of 49,792 m³ per month.  
 
This report will be given to the members of the Town of Erin Council on or before March 
31, 2015, as required by Section 22-2 (1) (a) of Schedule 22 of O. Reg 170/03, as 
amended.  It will be circulated to Council as an information item on the first available 
agenda following the date completed to formally put the report on the public record.  The 
report is available to the public at no cost, and will be posted on the Town’s website. 

38



 7 

Appendix 1 
SCHEDULE 22 

SUMMARY REPORTS FOR MUNICIPALITIES 

Municipal:  Large Residential 
Small Residential 

Application 
22-1.  This Schedule applies to the following drinking water systems: 

1. Large municipal residential systems. 

2. Small municipal residential systems. 

Report 
22-2.  (1)  The owner of a drinking water system shall ensure that, not later than March 31 

of each year after 2003, a report is prepared in accordance with subsections (2) and (3) for the 
preceding calendar year and is given to, 

(a) in the case of a drinking water system owned by a municipality, the members of the 
municipal council; 

(b) in the case of a drinking water system owned by a municipal service board established 
under section 195 of the Municipal Act, 2001, the members of the municipal service 
board; or  

(c) in the case of a drinking water system owned by a corporation, the board of directors 
of the corporation. 

(2)  The report must, 

(a) list the requirements of the Act, the regulations, the system’s approval, drinking water 
works permit, municipal drinking water licence, and any orders applicable to the 
system that were not met at any time during the period covered by the report; and 

(b) for each requirement referred to in clause (a) that was not met, specify the duration of 
the failure and the measures that were taken to correct the failure. 

(3)  The report must also include the following information for the purpose of enabling the 
owner of the system to assess the capability of the system to meet existing and planned uses of 
the system: 

1. A summary of the quantities and flow rates of the water supplied during the period 
covered by the report, including monthly average and maximum daily flows. 

2. A comparison of the summary referred to in paragraph 1 to the rated capacity and flow 
rates approved in the system’s approval, drinking water works permit or municipal 
drinking water licence, or if the system is receiving all of its water from another 
system under an agreement pursuant to subsection 5 (4), to the flow rates specified in 
the written agreement. 

(4)  If a report is prepared under subsection (1) for a system that supplies water to a 
municipality under the terms of a contract, the owner of the system shall give a copy of the report 
to the municipality by March 31. 

(5)  Revoked: O. Reg. 253/05, s. 18. 

OWRA approvals 
22-3.  A provision of an OWRA approval that requires the completion and presentation of 

a compliance report does not apply to a drinking water system if the owner of the system 
complies with section 22-2. 

O. Reg. 170/03, Sched. 22; O. Reg. 249/03, s. 24; O. Reg. 253/05, s. 18; O. Reg. 418/09, s. 26. 

39

http://www.e-laws.gov.on.ca/html/regs/french/elaws_regs_030170_f.htm


 8 

Appendix 2 
 

Regulations under the Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002 
 
 

O. Reg. 128/04: Certification of Drinking Water System Operators and 
Water Quality Analysts 
 
O. Reg. 169/03: Ontario Drinking Water Quality Standards 
 
O. Reg. 170/03: Drinking Water Systems 
 
O. Reg. 171/03: Definitions of Words and Expressions Used in the Act 
 
O. Reg. 172/03: Definitions of Deficiency and Municipal Drinking Water System 
 
O. Reg. 188/07: Licensing of Municipal Drinking Water Systems 
 
O. Reg.  242/05: Compliance and Enforcement 
 
O. Reg.  243/07: Schools Private Schools and Day Nurseries 
 
O. Reg.  248/03: Drinking Water Testing Services 
 
O. Reg.  453/07: The Financial Plans Regulation 
 
O. Reg.  229/07: Service of Documents 
  

40



 9 

Appendix 3 

 
  

41



 10 

 
  

42



 11 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

43



 12 

Appendix 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

44



 13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

45



 14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

46



 15 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

47



 16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

48



 17 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

49



 18 

 
 
 
 
 

50



 

Staff Report 

 

Report #:   W4-2015            
 
Date:    March-17-15     
 
Submitted By: Sara McDougall 
      
 

Subject: Water Meter Reader Position  
 
 

 

Recommendations: 

 

Be it resolved that  Doug Broderick is hereby hired for the Casual Part Time position of 

Water Meter Reader for the Town of Erin; 

And that the rate of pay for the position is Grade 7 Base Rate of the Town of Erin Part Time 

Hourly Wage Grid, plus mileage to be paid at the rate of $0.55/km. 

 

Background: 

 

The Town of Erin Water Department Meter Reader has decided to retire at the end of March 

2015. This will leave the Water Department without a Water Meter Reader. 

 

The Casual Part Time Water Meter Reader Position was posted, approximately ten resumes 

were received and three were interviewed.  

 

The successful applicant is Doug Broderick who has 30+ years’ experience in customer 

service and is knowledgeable with computer software.  Doug meets the fitness requirements 

for the position as he is involved in many activities within the community. 

 

I feel Doug will be a great fit for the position.  I look forward to working with him. 

 

 

Financial Impact: 

 

This position has been included in proposed 2015 budget.  The positon has been approved 

and included in past budgets from 2006 – 2014. 

 

Consultation: 

 

Water Department Staff 

51



 
 

 

Communications Plan: 

 

Council Report 

 

Conclusion: 

 

By hiring Doug Broderick for the Casual Part Time Water Meter Reader position, the water 

department is ensuring that there is adequate staff to run efficiently. 

 

Appendices: 

 

None 

 

52



Mthly 
Total

2015      
YTD

2014     
YTD

$ Loss  
Mthly

Mthly 
Total

2015    
YTD

2014      
YTD

$ Loss  
Mthly

Mthly 
Total

2015    
YTD

2014   
YTD

$ Loss  
Mthly

Type not specified:
Structure:
Vehicular: 1 1 $2,000

Grass, Rubbish, etc:
Other: 1 1 $0 1 $0

Mthly 
TTL 2015    YTD 2014       

YTD Mthly TTL 2015  
YTD 2014    YTD Mthly 

TTL
2015  
YTD

2014  
YTD

Medical Assist: 9 9 3 3 3 3

Motor Vehicle Collision: 5 5 1 1 1 2 2 3

Erin/Hillsburgh Assist 1 1

Mutual Aid: 1 1 1 1

C.O. Calls: 1 2 2

False Alarms:
Alarm Activiation: 1 1

Standby/Assist to Other Depts:
Burning Complaints:
Incorrect Pages: 2

Other: 1 1 3 1

MTHLY 2015       
YTD

2014      
YTD MTHLY 2015   

YTD
2014     
YTD MTHLY 2015 

YTD
2014 
YTD

18 18 10 8 8 7 2 2 3

Estimated Total $ Loss Due to Fire: $2,000 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Respectfully submitted,  Dan Callaghan  Fire Chief

ERIN FIRE & EMERGENCY SERVICES
Monthly Fire Report

T O T A L S:

F I R E:

REPORT MONTH: JANUARY 2015
ERIN

STATION #10
HILLSBURGH
STATION #50 EAST GARAFRAXA

53



 

Staff Report 

 

Report #:   T2015-02            
 
Date:    March-17-15     
 
Submitted By: Jackie Detta Tax Administrator 
      
 

Subject: Extension Agreement Tax Sale  
 
 

 

Recommendations:   

Be it resolved that Council supports the Tax Administrator’s recommendation and considers 

a Bylaw to authorize an Extension Agreement with Christopher Ian Sinclair pursuant to the 

Tax Sale Section of the Municipal Act, 2001. 

 

Background:   

 

The owner of the property Christopher Ian Sinclair has requested that the final date for 

payment of the full cancellation price be extended from April 9th 2015 to November 30th 2015. 

 

Financial Impact:    

 

2015 property taxes levied and all penalties and interest up to the date of payment for the 

preparation of the extension agreement will also be included in the full cancellation price 

payable, regardless of date of payment. 

 

Consultation:   

 

Extension Agreement was prepared by Realtax Inc and has been drafted and circulated to 

Council for consideration 

 

Communications Plan 

 

Conclusion:    

 

I recommend that Council adopts a Bylaw to authorize the Extension Agreement as attached. 

 

Appendices:   

 

Schedule “A” and  Schedule “B” 

54



55



56



57



 

Staff Report 

 

Report #:   P11 Site Alteration General             
 
Date:    March-17-15     
 
Submitted By: Kathryn Ironmonger, CMO, CMMIII 
      
 

Subject: Site Alteration By-law Report  
 
 

 

Recommendations: 

 

Be it resolved that Council supports the recommendation of the working group to consider 

the draft Site Alteration By-Law at their April 21st Council meeting; 

 

And to adopt the Site Alteration Committee’s Mandate and Terms of Reference; 

 

And further that the draft by-law be forwarded to the Town’s Solicitor for review and 

comment.  

 

 

Background: 

 

Erin Council has reviewed the recommendations of the Ad-hoc Site Alteration Committee to 

modify the Town’s current Site Alteration By-law.  Council directed the Mayor and Councillor 

Sammut to meet with staff to work through the issues and bring back a revised by-law. 

 

Financial Impact: 

 

Solicitor costs to peer review proposed changes to the site alteration by-law. 

 

Consultation: 

 

The Mayor, Councillor Sammut and staff reviewed the proposed recommendations of the Ad-

hoc Site Alteration committee.  The working group also reviewed the Town of Halton Hill’s 

Site Alteration By-law and their Committee Structure.  The decision of the working group was 

to recommend adopting the Halton Hill’s By-Law.  A copy of the proposed By-Law is attached 

as one of the Appendixes to this report.   

 

 

58



 
 

Communications Plan: 

 

Notification of Council consideration to pass the new the Site Alteration By-law will be posted 

to the Town’s website to advise the public..  

 

Conclusion: 

 

The recommendation of the working group is for Council to pass the attached By-Law at the 

April 21st Council Meeting.  This will provide sufficient time for the Town’s solicitor to review 

the draft by-law.  

 

Appendices: 

 

A) Draft  Site Alteration By-Law  

B) Site Alteration Committee Mandate and Terms of Reference  

 

59



1  

 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF ERIN 
 

BY-LAW NO. 15 - 
 

 

A By-law to Prohibit or Regulate Site Alterations within the 
Town of Erin and to Repeal By-law No. 12-18. 

 
 
 

WHEREAS Sections 11(2) and 142 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 

amended, authorize a municipality to pass by-laws to prohibit, regulate, or require a permit 
for, and impose conditions upon, the placing or dumping of Fill, removal of Topsoil or 

alteration of the grade of Land; 
 
AND WHEREAS Sections 23.1, 23.2, 23.3 and 23.5 of the Municipal Act, 2001 

authorize a municipality to delegate certain powers and duties; 
 
AND WHEREAS Sections 9, 11 and 391 of the Municipal Act, 2001 authorize a 
municipality to impose fees and charges for, inter alia, services and activities provided 
or done by or on behalf of the municipality; 

 
AND WHEREAS Section 436 of the Municipal Act, 2001 authorizes a municipality to 
pass by-laws providing that the municipality may enter on Land to conduct inspections; 

 
AND WHEREAS Sections 444 and 445 of the Municipal Act, 2001 authorize a 
municipality to make orders to discontinue, or to correct, the contravention of a by-law; 

 
AND WHEREAS Section 446 of the Municipal Act, 2001 authorizes a municipality to do 

a matter or thing in default of it being done by the person directed or required to do it; 
 
AND WHEREAS Council for the Corporation of the Town of Erin deems it in the public 
interest to enact a by-law for prohibiting or regulating the placing or dumping of Fill, the 
removal of Topsoil, and the alteration of the grade of the Land in order to ensure that: 

 
(a) Existing drainage patterns are maintained; 
(b) Interference and damage to watercourses or water bodies is limited;  

(c) Water quality is maintained; 
(d) Erosion and sedimentation are prevented; 
(e) Changes to drainage or grade are appropriate to protect natural heritage 

features and areas and archaeological resources; 
(f)  The use of hazardous or improper Fill is prevented; 
(g) Unanticipated drainage and Site Alteration changes are prevented;  
(h) Haul Routes for the transportation of Fill and Topsoil authorized for 

placement, dumping or removal will be designated to and/or from a Site by 

60



2  

the Director to minimize damage to the Town’s roads and minimize 
interference and/or disturbance to the Town’s residents and businesses from 
any placement, dumping or removal; 

 
AND WHEREAS Council for the Corporation of the Town of Erin deems it advisable 
to exercise this authority, as well as, provide for the rehabilitation of Lands and 
protect water bodies and environmental protection areas where the removal of 
Topsoil, or the placing and dumping of Fill or alteration of grade of the Land is 
permissible. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF 
ERIN ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SHORT TITLE 

The short title of this By-law is the Site Alteration By-law. 

 
PART I APPLICATION 

 
1. This By-law does not apply to: 

 
(a) Activities or matters undertaken by the Municipality, or a local board 

thereof; 

 
(b) Site Alterations imposed after December 31, 2002, as a condition  

 to: 
 

(i) the approval of a site plan, a plan of subdivision or a consent under 
Sections 41, 51 or 53, respectively, of the Planning Act or as a 
requirement of a site plan agreement or subdivision agreement 
entered into under those sections; 

(ii) a development permit authorized by regulation made under  
 Section 70.2 of the Planning Act or as a requirement of an  
 agreement entered into under that regulation; 

 

(c) Site Alterations undertaken: 
 

(i) by a transmitter or distributor, as those terms are defined in  
Section 2 of the Electricity Act, 1998, for the purpose of constructing 
and maintaining a transmission system or a distribution system, as 
those terms are defined in that section; 

 
(ii) on Land described in a licence for a pit or quarry or a permit for a 

wayside pit or wayside quarry issued under the Aggregate 
Resources Act; 

 

61



3  

(iii) to lawfully establish and operate or enlarge any pit or quarry on 
Land: 

 
1) that has been designated under the Aggregate Resources 

Act or a predecessor of that Act; 
2) on which a pit or quarry is a permitted Land use under a by- 

law passed under Section 34 of the Planning Act; 

 
(iv) as an incidental part of drain construction under the Drainage Act or 

the Tile Drainage Act; 

 
(d) any area of the Town which is the subject of a regulation made under 

Section 28 of the Conservation Authorities Act respecting Site Alterations; 
and 

 
(e)  the removal of Topsoil as an incidental part of a normal agricultural 

practice including such removal as an incidental part of sod-farming, 
greenhouse operations and nurseries for horticultural products, but this 
exception does not include the removal of Topsoil for sale, exchange or 
other disposition. 

 

PART II DEFINITIONS 
 

 

2. In this By-law: 

 
Applicant means any Person applying for a Permit under this By-law; 
 
Committee means the Site Alteration Committee established by the Town for the 
purpose of reviewing requests for variance from, or exceptions to, the prohibition 
under Section 6(1) of this By-law; 
 
Council means the Council for the Town; 

CBO means the Chief Building Official for the Town, or their designate; 
 
Fill means any type of material deposited or placed on or removed from a Site and 
includes but is not limited to earth, topsoil, stone, brick, concrete, asphalt, sod or 
turf, either singly or in combination; 
 
Highway means a common and public highway and includes a street, bridge or 
other  structure  forming  part  of  a  Highway  over  or  across  which  a  Highway 
passes, and includes the whole of a road allowance under the jurisdiction of the 
Town; 
 
Inspector means an employee of the Town designated and appointed by the 
CBO and authorized to administer and enforce the provisions of this By-law;  

62



4  

Land includes any private property, premises, grounds, yards or vacant lot; 

Owner means a Person who is the registered Owner of a Site; 

Permit means a Site Alteration Permit issued under this By-law; 

 
Permit Holder means the Person who holds a Permit issued under this By-law; 
 
Person includes a company, a corporation, a partnership, or an individual 
person, and the singular shall include the plural; 
 
Rural Land means any rural or agricultural Land, or Land designated as a Non- 
Urban Zone or Environmental and Open Space Zone under the provisions of any 
zoning by-law passed by the Town pursuant to the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, 
chap. P13; 
 
Site means Land upon which a Site Alteration is proposed; 
 
Site Alteration includes the alteration of the grade; the placing, dumping, or 
removal of Fill in or from a Site; and the removal of Topsoil from a Site; 

 
Topsoil means those horizons in a soil profile, commonly known as the “O” and 
the “A” horizons, containing organic material, and includes deposits of partially 
decomposed organic matter such as peat; and 
 
Town means The Corporation of the Town of Erin, or the geographic area 
comprising the Town of Erin. 

 
PART III ADMINISTRATION 
 
3. (1) The CBO shall be responsible for the administration and enforcement  

of this By-law. 
  

(2) The CBO shall: 
 

(a) operate and manage a Permit system in a manner to ensure 
compliance with this By-law; 

(b) carry out the procedural, policy and enforcement provisions of  
 this By-law or any by-law related hereto; and 
(c) engage in the issuance of Permits in accordance with this By-law.  
 

 (3) The CBO may: 

(a) prior to the issuance of a Permit, require the Applicant to enter into 
an Agreement which may be registered on title to the Site, and 
which will charge the Site with the performance of the obligations 
of the Applicant or Owner and any such Agreement may contain 

63



5  

such requirements as the CBO considers necessary to ensure that 
the Site Alteration is done in accordance with prevailing Town 
design standards proper engineering practices and the conditions 
attached to the permit issued; 

(b) issue a Permit in accordance with the provisions of this By- 
 law;  
(c) make forms, notices, applications and documents not  

otherwise prescribed by this By-law to satisfy the requirements 
of, or to provide other information required under this By-law; 
and 

(d) designate and appoint Inspectors for reviewing and enforcing 
contraventions in accordance with the provisions of this By-law. 

 
(4) Council has determined that, in consideration of the number of people, the 

size of the geographic area and the time period affected by the exercise of 
the powers delegated by Subsection 3(3) of this By-law, the said powers 
are of a minor nature. 

 
(5) The Schedules appended to this By-law are incorporated into, and form a 

part of this By-law. 

 
4. The Committee, as appointed by Council for a term to run concurrent with the term 

of Council, shall be responsible to review requests pursuant to Section 8 of this 
By- law, for a variance from, or exception to, the prohibition contained in Section 
6(1) of this By-law and to make recommendations to Council respecting such 
requests. 

 

5. The following rules apply to the administration and application processes of this By- 
law: 

 
(1) Inspectors shall be designated and appointed by the CBO and the 

appointment shall be consistent with the Employee Code of Ethics and 
Rules of Conduct as prescribed by the Town Personnel Policy. 

 
(2) Neither the Director nor the Committee has jurisdiction to consider 

questions relating to the validity of a statute, regulation or by-law or 
the constitutional applicability or operability of any statute, regulation 
or by- law. 

 

(3) No Site Alteration shall detrimentally affect the quality or quantity of water 
in wells on adjacent properties. 

 

PART IV  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

64



6  

6. (1) Unless exemptions under Sections 1 or 7 apply, and subject to a variance 
  or exception granted by Section 8, no Person shall carry out a Site Alteration 

on Rural Land in the Town. 
  
 (2) No Person shall carry out any Site Alteration elsewhere in the Town: 
    
   (a) without having first obtained, and thereafter continuing to hold, a  
    valid Permit issued in accordance with this By-law; or 
   (b) in contravention of a Permit issued under this By-law. 
  
 (3) Permits shall be in forms as provided in the Schedules to this By-law. 
  
 (4) Every Applicant for a Permit under this By-law shall: 
    
   (a) complete  and  submit  the  applicable  form(s)  as  provided  in   
    the Schedules to this By-law; 
   (b) submit the Permit fee as set out in the schedules appended to this  
    By-Law. 
   (c) provide  all  documentation  as  required  under  this  By-law  and  

    schedules to this By-law. 

 
(5) An Applicant who has been refused a Permit issued under this By-law or  

is not satisfied with conditions attached to the permit issued, may appeal the 
decision of the CBO by sending a notice of appeal by registered mail to the 
Clerk of the Town within fourteen (14) days after being notified by the Town. 

 

(6) An  appeal  under  Subsection  (5)  shall  be  conducted  pursuant  to  the 
provisions of the Statutory Powers Procedure Act R.S.O. 1990, c.S.22 and 
the relevant provisions of Section 13 of this By-law shall apply thereto. 

 
(7) Where a Permit under this section is not appealed within the time referred to 

in subsection (5) it shall be deemed to be final. 

 
(8) Any person who provides misleading or false information in an application 

under this By-law, or in any statement or plan required to be produced under 
this By-law or on any appeal under this By-law or who concurs in such an 

action or omission is guilty of an offence. 
 

PART V EXEMPTIONS 
 

7. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 6, a Permit is not required for a Site 
Alteration on a Site equal to or less than 0.5 hectare in size, and up to 200 cubic 
meters of Fill: 
 
(a) for the installation of a swimming pool, including decking, greater than sixty 

65



7  

(60) centimeters (24 inches) from any lot line, provided that a pool enclosure 
permit is obtained from the Town pursuant to the by-law to regulate pool 
enclosures, By-law 09-14  or any successor thereto; 

(b) for the purpose of lawn dressing, landscaping, or adding to flower beds or 
vegetable gardens, provided that; 
(i) no soil in excess of fifteen (15) centimeters (6 inches) in depth is 

placed on the Land; 
(ii) the elevation of the Land within sixty (60) centimeters (24 inches) of 

any property line is not changed; and 
(iii) there is no change in the location, direction or elevation of any natural 

or artificial watercourse, water body, open channel, swale or ditch used 
to drain the Land. 

 
PART VI  REQUESTS FOR VARIANCE OR EXCEPTION 

 
 

8.  (1) An Owner of Rural Land may request a variance from, or exception to,  

 the prohibition contained in Section 6(1) and, upon such a request being 
made, the Owner is entitled to a review of such request by the Committee. 

 

 (2) Requests for variance or exception under Subsection (1) shall be in  

 writing and directed to the Committee in care of the CBO specifying the 
reasons for the variance or exception and include any documents the Owner 
will be relying on. 

 

 (3) Upon receipt of a written request under Subsection (2), the CBO shall: 

 
(a) schedule a review before the Committee; and 
(b) give the requesting Owner notice of the review date at least 

twenty (20) days prior to the hearing date. 
 

(4) Delivery of any notice to the requesting Owner shall be made by personal 
delivery or registered mail. The notice shall be deemed to have been 
delivered on the seventh (7th) day after the date of mailing, or on the date 
of personal delivery. 

 
(5) Notice of a review on a request under Subsection (2) shall be circulated by 

the CBO to the appropriate Building Department staff, and the Inspector(s) 
appointed under this By-law for the purpose of preparing a report outlining 
staff’s recommendation on the request. 

 
(6) The review of a request under Subsection (2) shall be held in public, and 

the Committee shall hear the requesting Owner and every other person 
who desires to be heard in favour of or against the request, and the 
Committee may adjourn the meeting or reserve its recommendation. 

66



8  

 
(7) Upon reviewing a request under Subsection (2), the Committee shall 

consider whether the requested variance or exception: 

 
(a) will result in maintaining or improving the overall fertility of the 

Site; 
(b) is an incidental part of a normal agricultural practice; 
(c) will maintain the general intent and purpose of this By-law; 

and 
(d) the committee shall suggest any conditions which may be 

attached to any variance or exception requested. 

 
(8) At the conclusion of the review, the Committee shall submit a report 

summarizing the relevant facts and arguments presented by the parties in 
attendance, making recommendations to Council for or against the 
variance or exception requested, along with any appropriate conditions 
and setting out the reasons for such recommendations. 

 
(9) Council may uphold or vary the recommendations of the Committee. 

 
(10) An Owner who has been denied or refused a variance or exception under 

this Part or is not satisfied with any conditions attached, may appeal by 
sending a notice of appeal by registered mail to the Clerk of the Town within 
fourteen (14) days after being notified by the Town. 

 

(11) An  appeal  under  Subsection  (10)  shall  be  conducted  pursuant  to  the 
provisions of the Statutory Powers Procedure Act R.S.O. 1990, c.S.22 and 

the relevant provisions of Section 13 of this By-law shall apply thereto. 

 
(12) Where a decision by Council under this section is not appealed within the 

time referred to in Subsection (10) it shall be deemed to be final and 
binding. 

 
 
 

PART VII HAUL ROUTES 
 
9. (1) The CBO on permit applications under Section 6 or the Council on Exception  

or Variance under Section 8 may designate one or more Haul Routes to and 
one or more Haul Routes from a Site for the placement or dumping of Fill at 
the Site or the removal of Topsoil from the Site. 

 
(2) The CBO or Council may establish the amount of the liquidated damages to 

the Town for failure to use designated Haul Routes. 
 

(3) Where the Highways are not under the jurisdiction of the Town; the 

67



9  

Applicant shall provide permission from the road authority in a form 
acceptable to the CBO prior to issuance of a permit. 

 
(4) An Owner or Occupier of Land which is subject of a Permit Applicaton under 

Section 6 or a Variance or Exception request under Section 8 of this By-law 
as a condition for obtaining a permit under Section 6 of this By-law or an 
Exception or Variance under Section 8 of this By-law for which a designated 
Haul Route condition has been established shall be responsible for ensuring 
that the designated Haul Routes are used by any person coming to or 
travelling from the Site under the authority of the Permit or Exception or 
Variance concerned and any failure to do so shall be in contravention of this 
By-law for which the Owner or Occupier is liable to a fine under Section 10 
(1) and/or to the revocation of the Permit or Exception or Variance 
concerned by the Director or Council as the cases may be. 

 
(5) Any person failing to use a designated Haul Route for the dumping or 

placing of Fill on a Site or the removing of Topsoil from a Site which is the 
subject of a Permit or Exception or Variance under this By-law is guilty of 
an offence. 

 
PART VIII ENFORCEMENT 

 
10. (1) Every Person who contravenes any of the provisions of this By-law is guilty 

of an offence and upon conviction is liable to pay a fine of not less than Five 

Hundred Dollars ($500.00) and not more than One Hundred Thousand 
Dollars ($100,000.00). 

 
 

 (2) The Owner of Land where a contravention of this By-law has occurred may 
be charged with and convicted of an offence under Section 6 of this By-law 
for which any Person is subject to be charged unless, at the time of the 
offence, the Site Alteration was without the Owner’s consent and, on 
conviction, the Owner is liable to pay the penalty prescribed for the offence. 

  

 (3) Every Owner or occupier of Land where a contravention of this By-law has 
occurred shall prevent the continuation or repetition of the contravention. 

 

11. (1) An Inspector may enter upon Land at any reasonable time for the purpose 
of carrying out an inspection to determine whether or not the following are 

  being complied with: 
   

(a) this By-law; 
(b) A Permit, or a condition of a Permit; or 
(c) a direction or order made under the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, 

c.25 or this By-law. 
  

(2) For the purposes of an inspection under Subsection (1) the Inspector may: 

68



10  

    
(a) require the production for inspection of documents or things relevant 

to the inspection; 
(b) inspect and remove documents or things relevant to the inspection 

for the purpose of making copies or extracts; 
(c) require information from any Person concerning a matter related to 

the inspection; and 
(d) alone or in conjunction with a person possessing special or expert 

knowledge, make examinations or take tests, samples or 
photographs necessary for the purposes of the inspection. 

  
(3) A receipt shall be provided for any document or thing removed under 

Clause (2) (b) and the document or thing shall be promptly returned after 
the copies or extracts are made. 

  
(4) A sample taken under Clause (2)(d) shall be divided into two parts, and 

one part shall be delivered to the Person from whom the sample is taken, 
if the Person so requests at the time the sample is taken and provides the 
necessary facilities. 

  
(5) If a sample is taken under Clause (2)(d) and the sample has not been 

divided into two parts, a copy of any report on the sample shall be given to 
the Person from whom the sample was taken. 

  
(6) No Person shall hinder or obstruct, or attempt to hinder or obstruct, an 

Inspector conducting an inspection or a Person performing corrective 
works under this By-law. 

 
12. (1) If the Inspector is satisfied that a contravention of this By-law has occurred,  

the Inspector may make an order requiring the Person who contravened the 
By-law or who caused or permitted the contravention or the Owner or 
occupier of the Land on or about which the contravention occurred to: 

   
(a) discontinue the contravening activity; and/or 
(b) do work to correct the contravention. 

  
(2) Any Person who contravenes an order under Subsection (1) is guilty of an 

offence. 
  
 (3) An order under Subsection (1) shall set out: 
   

(a) reasonable particulars of the contravention adequate to identify the 
contravention; and 

(b) the location of the Land or elsewhere on which the contravention 
occurred; and 

69



11  

  (c) either: 
 

(i) in the case of an order under Clause (1)(a), hereof the date by 
which there must be compliance with the order; or 

(ii) in the case of an order under Clause (1)(b), hereof the work to 
be done and the date by which the work must be done. 

 
(4) An order under Clause (1)(b) may require work to be done even though the 

facts which constitute the contravention of this By-law were present before 
this By-law came into force. 

 
(5) In default of any work required by an order under Clause (1)(b) being done 

by the Person directed or required to do it, the work shall be done by the 

Town at the Person’s expense. 

 
(6) The Town may recover the costs of doing any thing or matter under 

Subsection (5) by action or by adding the costs to the tax roll and collecting 
them in the same manner as property taxes. 

 

(7) The costs in Subsection (6) shall include interest calculated at a rate of 15 

per cent, calculated for the period commencing on the day the Town incurs 

the costs and ending on the day the costs, including the interest, are paid in 

full. 

 

(8) For the purposes of Subsection (5), the Town and its employees, agents and 

representatives may enter upon Land at any reasonable time. 

 

13. (1) An order under Section 12 shall be served on the Person whom the 

  Inspector believes is contravening this By-law by personal delivery or 

registered mail. The order shall be deemed to have been served on the 

seventh (7th) day after the date of mailing or on the date of personal delivery. 

 

(2) A Person who has been served with an order and who is not satisfied with 

 the terms or conditions of the order may appeal by sending a notice of 

 appeal by registered mail to the Clerk of the Town within seven (7) days after 

 being served with the order. 

  

 (3) An appeal under Subsection (2) shall be conducted pursuant to the 

 provisions of the Statutory Powers Procedure Act R.S.O. 1990, c.S.22 and 

 the relevant provisions of Section 13 of this By-law shall apply thereto. 

  

(4) An order under this section that is not appealed within the time referred to in 

70



12  

 Subsection (2) shall be deemed to be final. 

 

14. (1) Council, or a committee or hearing officer appointed by Council, shall hear 

 any appeal under this By-law. 

  

 (2) Where a committee or hearing officer appointed by Council has heard any 

 appeal, the hearing committee or officer shall submit a report summarizing 

 the relevant evidence and arguments presented by the parties in 

 attendance, setting out the findings of fact, making recommendations to 

  Council and setting out the reasons for such recommendations. 

 

 (3) Council may uphold or vary the recommendation of the committee or 

 hearing officer and the determination, as the case may be, shall be final and 

 binding. 
 

15. If a court of competent jurisdiction should declare any section or a part of this By-law 
to be invalid, the remainder of this By-law shall continue in force, unless the court 
makes an order to the contrary. 

 
16. That Town of Erin By-law 12-18 is hereby repealed in its entirety. 

 
17. This By-law shall come into full force and effect on its date of passing. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

BY-LAW read and passed by the Council for the Town of Erin this 17th day of 
March, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
MAYOR  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CLERK  

71



13  

SCHEDULE A 
 

 
 

SITE ALTERATION PERMITS 
 
1. A Person applying for a Permit shall submit the following to the CBO: 

 
(a)  a complete application in the form prescribed in Schedule ‘B’ appended 

to this By-law, including proof satisfactory to the CBO that the Applicant is 
the legal Owner of the Site, or has been authorized by the Owner of the Site 
to submit the application; 

(b)  the prior written consent of the Owner of the Land where the Site 
Alteration is to take place; 

(c)  the applicable Permit fee in accordance with Schedule ‘C’ appended 
to this By-law 

(d)  an accurate plan of the Site in accordance with the requirements set out in 
Schedule ‘B’ appended to this By-law showing: 

 
(i) the property boundaries of the Site with dimensions; 
(ii) existing elevations in the form of contours at 0.5 metre 

intervals or less, with spot elevations along the Site 
boundary lines and 3.0 metres beyond the Site boundary 
lines at sufficient intervals to clearly show the existing 
drainage patterns on the Land and on the abutting Lands; 

(iii) the location of all existing underground plant, including storm 
sewers, watercourses and any bodies of water, on the Site 
and on abutting Lands and Highways; 

(iv) the location of all existing buildings or structures, all trees 
greater than 75 mm in calliper (which shall be identified by 
species), all shrubs and driveways on the Site and all 
easements and rights-of-way over, under, across or through 
the Site; 

(v) proposed sediment and erosion controls that will be installed 
prior to alteration of the Site; 

(vi) proposed final elevations and the drainage system to be 
used upon completion of the Site Alteration; 

(vii) the intended use of the Site, including a description of the 
proposed Fill placement or Topsoil removal operation; and 

(viii) all existing street services, including light standards, hydro 
poles and transformers, cable television and telephone 
pedestals, fire hydrants and valves, catch basins and 
manholes; 

 

(e) a plan showing the design details to proper scale of any retaining wall that 

may be required, including the size, type and location of all material to be 

72



14  

used in construction of such retaining wall, with a Professional Engineer’s 

signature and stamp; 

 
(f) a Haul Route Plan showing the proposed roads within the Town to be used 

for vehicles dumping Fill to the Site for the dumping or placement of Fill and 
to be used by vehicles removing Topsoil from the Site. 

 
(g) a refundable security: 

(i) in the amount as prescribed in Schedule ‘C’ appended  

to this By-law 

(ii) in a form acceptable to the CBO to secure performance of the 
work for which the Permit was obtained; and 

(iii) available to recover the cost of the Town performing or 
having performed: 

 
1. any required works which the Applicant or Permit 

holder has failed to perform to the satisfaction of the 
Director, or 

2. any restoration works required to be performed on 
any Highway damaged as a result of the works; and 

 
(iv) available to recover the liquidated damages suffered by the 

Town, for any failures to use designated Haul Routes to and 
from the Site. 

 
(h) a release and indemnity in favour of the Town, and in a form satisfactory to 

the CBO, with respect to any and all liability which may arise in the event that 
the Fill used in the Site Alteration contains contaminants within the meaning of 
the Environmental Protection Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. E.19, as amended; 

 
2. (1) The refundable security provided under Paragraph 1 (e) to this Schedule 
  shall remain in effect for the full duration of the Permit, and any irrevocable 
  letter of credit and its subsequent renewal forms shall contain a clause 
  stating that thirty (30) days’ written notice must be given to the Town prior to 
  its expiry or cancellation. 

 

(2) In the event that the Town receives notice that a letter of credit is expiring and 
will not be renewed, or if further or additional securities are not provided within 
the said thirty (30) days’ notice period, the Town may draw on the current 
letter of credit at the discretion of the Director, and any interest accruing on 
the realized cash security shall belong to the Town and not to the Permit 
Holder. 

 
3. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this By-law, after taking into 

consideration the proposed works and whether the Applicant otherwise has 

73



15  

conformed with this By-law, the CBO may waive the requirement for a plan, 
and/or reduce or waive the Permit fee but not the refundable security. 

 

 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF PERMIT 

 
4. (1)  A Permit shall remain valid for a period of one year from the date of 

issuance but shall expire six (6) months after the date of issuance if 
work under the Permit has not yet commenced. 

 
(2) A Permit which is no longer valid or has expired may, at the sole discretion of 

the CBO, be renewed for a six (6) month period from the date of invalidity or 
expiry provided that the proposed work has not been revised and that the 
Applicant is not in contravention of the requirements of this By-law. 

 
(3) A request under Subsection (2) shall be made in writing to the CBO 

accompanied by payment of the applicable Permit fee in accordance 
with Schedule ‘C’ appended to this By-law. 

 
5. All Permits shall contain the following conditions: 

 
(a) The issuance of a Permit does not relieve the Owner of Land, Applicant, 

or Permit Holder from any responsibility to obtain all other approvals that 
may be required from any level of government or authority having 
jurisdiction or any agencies thereof. 

(b) A Site Alteration Permit is not transferable to another property. 
(c) The work shall be done at the request of, or with the consent of, the 

Owner of the Lands where the proposed Site Alteration is to be performed.  
(d) All Fill to be dumped or placed shall be clean and free of waste, asphalt, 

trash, rubbish, glass, liquid or toxic chemicals, hazardous waste or 
contaminants within the meaning of the Environmental Protection Act. 

(e) No ponding or alteration of existing surface water flow resulting directly or 
indirectly from the Site Alteration shall be caused on abutting Lands. 

 (f) Where required, the finished grade surface shall be protected from  
  erosion by sod, turf, seeding for grass, greenery, asphalt, concrete, or  

 other means either singly or in combination, within two months of 
completion of the Site Alteration work, or as specified by the CBO. 

(g) All trenches in which piping is laid as part of the drainage system shall be 
inspected by the CBO prior to backfilling the excavation. 

(h) Erosion and sedimentation control measures shall be provided around all 
disturbed areas in a manner satisfactory to the CBO prior to the 
commencement of the Site Alteration, and shall be maintained in good 
working order until the Site has stabilized. 

(i) All Fill shall be properly compacted using acceptable engineering 
practices, unless it is being stockpiled on the Site for future use. 

(j) The Permit Holder and Owner shall ensure that natural drainage or any 

74



16  

natural or human-made watercourse or water body is not altered in such a 
manner that will negatively affect other property or the environment. 

(k) If archaeological resources are discovered or identified during the Site 
Alteration, even after the issuance of a Permit, the Owner of Land, 
Applicant or Permit Holder shall immediately cease all activity on the 
property and contact the CBO. 

(l) No Site Alteration shall be performed: 
 

 (i) on any Saturday or Sunday, or Statutory Holiday; 
 (ii) using Highways to access or egress from the Site except those 
  Highways designated Haul Routes; 
 (iii) before 8:30 a.m. or after 3:00 p.m. during any weekday Monday  
  through Friday using Highways to access or egress from the Site; 
 (iv) in contravention of the Town’s Noise By-law; 
 (v) that exceeds one hundred (100) truck loads of Fill per day  

 arriving at, or leaving, the Site using Highways to access or egress 
from the Site; 

 (vi) prior to submitting to the Town a schedule of the anticipated  
  starting and completion dates for each Site Alteration activity  
  including the schedule for the use of the designated Haul  
  Routes; 
 (vii) prior to submitting to the Town a submission detailing Site  
  erosion control measures and dust control measures that will be  
  implemented and maintained during and following construction,  
  as required. 

 
(m) A Site Alteration performed pursuant to a Permit shall not detrimentally 

affect the quality or quantity of water in wells on adjacent properties. 
(n) The Owner and Occupant of the Land and any Permit Holder ensures that 

all vehicles to and from the Site follow the designated Haul Routes to and 
from the Site. 

 

 

6. Every Permit Holder shall: 

 (a) provide proof satisfactory to the CBO that the Site has been  

adequately reinstated and stabilized in accordance with this By-law and the 

plan accompanying the Permit; 

 (b) give notice to the CBO to carry out a final inspection to confirm that all  

  relevant terms of this By-law have been complied with; 

(c) following the completion of the Works, and before the release of any  

deposit or portion thereof, provide a statement of a Professional  

Engineer or Ontario Land Surveyor retained by the Permit Holder certifying 

that: 

  

75



17  

 (i)   the grading has been completed in accordance with the plans  
 submitted; 

(ii)  the finished project does not detrimentally affect drainage on  
 adjacent properties; and 

(iii)  the finished project does not detrimentally affect the quality or 
quantity of water in wells on adjacent properties. 

 
(d) prior to commencement of works under a Permit, certify that the Fill 

introduced to the Site contains no contaminants within the meaning of the 
Environmental Protection Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.E.19, as amended; 

(e) keep all Highways free of debris originating from the Site Alteration; and 
(f) during performance of a Site Alteration, perform the following minimum 

procedures: 

 
(i)   at least once per day, scrape all Highways that have been  
 fouled; and 
(ii)  at least once each week on Friday night or Saturday morning,  
 clean all Highways that have been fouled. 

 
 
 

ISSUANCE OF PERMIT 
 

7. The CBO may issue a Permit where: 
 

(a) the CBO is satisfied that the Site Alteration which is the subject of the 
application for a Permit is not otherwise prohibited by this By-law; 

(b) the Applicant has fulfilled all requirements of this By-law; 
(c) the Applicant has entered into an agreement referred to in Section 3(3)(a) 

of this By-law, if required, and has performed all the obligations which the 
agreement requires to be performed prior to the issuance of a Permit; 

(d) the CBO is satisfied that the proposed grade and resulting drainage 
pattern, the design of any retaining wall, the type of Fill to be placed and 
the method of grading, are all in accordance with prevailing Town design 
standards and proper engineering practice; 

(e) a Professional Engineer’s signature and stamp is provided on the plan 
submitted with the application, where the exposed height of any retaining 
wall is 1.0 metre or greater; 

(f) an appropriate Haul Route or Haul Routes to and from the Site have been 
designated by the Director for the use of Vehicles travelling to or from the 
Site for the purpose of dumping or placing Fill or removing Topsoil. 

 
 
 

REVOCATION OF PERMIT 
 
8. (1) Where the ownership of the Land for which a Permit has been issued is 
  transferred while the Permit remains in effect, the Permit Holder, prior to 

76



18  

  the completion of the transfer, shall provide written notice of both the 
  pending transfer and the Site Alteration status to both the CBO and the 
  new Owner, and the new Owner shall within thirty (30) days of the 
  completion of the transfer either: 

 
(a) provide the Town with an undertaking to comply with all the 

conditions under which the existing Permit was issued, or 
(b) apply for and obtain a new Permit in accordance with the provisions 

of this By-law. 

 
(2) In the event that neither the undertaking prescribed by Clause (1)(a), nor a 

complete application for a new Permit under Clause (1)(b), is received by 
the Town within the said period, the existing Permit may be revoked by the 
CBO, and the Permit Holder shall thereupon cease and desist forthwith all 
operations being conducted under the authority of the revoked Permit, save 
and except for proper clean-up of the Site Alteration works already 
undertaken. 

 
(3) Where it is determined that the Permit Holder has provided misleading 

or false information on the application, or has contravened the provisions of  
this By-law or the requirements or conditions of the Permit, the Director may  
revoke said Permit and the Permit Holder shall thereafter cease and desist 
all operations being conducted under the authority of the revoked Permit, 
save and except proper clean-up of the Site Alteration works already 
undertaken. 

77



19  

SCHEDULE B 
 

 

Site Alteration Permit No.: Date: 
 

 
(YY/MM/DD) 

Permit Fee: $ Refundable Security: $ 

Address of Site: 

Name of Owner: Tel: 

Address: Postal Code: 
 
The undersigned hereby applies for a Site Alteration Permit pursuant to the provisions of Town of Erin 

By-law No. 15 – xx  
 
Pursuant to the Site Alteration By-law, the undersigned hereby acknowledges that the sole responsibility 

for the completion of the work undertaken as part of this application including compliance with any 

conditions rests entirely with the Owner and/or Applicant. 
 
The undersigned also agrees that the total costs of all works will be entirely the responsibility of the 

Owner. 
 
The undersigned certifies to the Town that any and all Fill used in completing the Site Alteration contains 

no contaminants within the meaning of the Environmental Protection Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. E.19. The 

undersigned hereby releases and agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Town, its employees, 

representatives, agents and contractors, from and against all claims, demands, damages, causes of 

action, costs, expenses and other liabilities of any nature, which may arise in the event that the Fill is 

determined to contain contaminants. 

 

If an agent is being used, the Owner must also complete the following: 
 

Agent’s Name: Tel: 

Address: Postal Code: 
 

I, being the registered Owner of the subject Site(s) 
 

Hereby 
authorize 

 
 
 
(type or print name of agent) 

to prepare, submit, and act on 

my behalf with respect to this application. 
 
 
 

Signature of Agent Signature of Owner/Applicant 
 

 
 
 

       CBO Approval Date of Approval 
(YY/MM/DD) 

The personal information on this form is collected under the authority of Section 11 of the Municipal Act, 

as amended. The information is used for the purpose of processing this application and administering the 

By-law. Questions regarding the collection of this information should be directed to the Town’s 

Records/FOI Coordinator at dina.lundy@erin.ca. 

78

mailto:dina.lundy@erin.ca.


20  

Proposed Lot Grading for In-fill Construction Design and Drawing 
Requirements 

 

Two (2) copies of a lot grading plan, certified as specified below, will be required 
showing existing elevations of the Site, and sufficient elevations of adjacent 
properties to indicate existing drainage patterns.  All grading plans are to be metric 
and printed from original drawings with all information legible and clear.  All plans are 
to be folded to 8 ½ " x 11" size, with title blocks visible. 

 

On this plan, the proposed building is to be superimposed, indicating the proposed 
elevations along with any proposals that may be necessary to eliminate potential 
drainage problems to the subject Site, or any adjacent property. The plan must also 
show all driveways, sidewalks, walkways, easements, catch basins, along with any 
other features that may affect the drainage proposal. 

 

All elevations shall be tied into existing Town benchmarks and be related to geodetic 
data. 

 

A certificate on the drawing, executed by a Professional Engineer, or a Registered 
Ontario Land Surveyor, should be in the following form: 

 
“I have reviewed plans for the construction of     
Located at    and have 
prepared this plan to indicate the compatibility of the proposal to existing adjacent 
properties and municipal services.  It is my belief that adherence to the proposed 
grades, as shown, will produce adequate surface drainage and proper facility of the 
municipal services without any detrimental effect to the existing drainage patterns or 
adjacent properties.” 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Signature and Stamp of Applicant’s Engineer/Surveyor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

79



21  

SCHEDULE C 

APPLICATION FEE AND SECURITY 

 
1. Permit Fee Schedule  

 
 
Type of Property of Site Alteration  
 

 
Permit  

Renewal  
Fee  

 
Lots where placement of material is less 
than 2000m3    
 

 
$500 + .10 per 
m3  

 
$200  

 
Lots where greater than 2000m3 of 
material is placed.   
 

 
$1000 + 1.00 
per m3  

 
$500  

 
Review of Drainage plan, by Town’s 
consulting engineers, as required by the 
Director 
  

 
$500 minimum  

 
 

 
 

 
Securities Requirements    
 

 
Refundable Security  

 
Residential, Zones and Rural Residential 
lots under 1 ha; includes 2 inspections; 
add’l inspection to be charged from general 
security at $75.00 per inspection     
 

 
cost of rehabilitation and  drainage, 
which may include 7.5cm 
placement of topsoil, grading, 
seeding, tree protection or 
replacement.   
 

 
Agricultural, Commercial, Institutional, 
Industrial or Future Development fill area 
up to 4ha in area  
 
Includes 3 inspections, add’l inspection to 
be charged from general security at $75.00 
per inspection    
    

 
cost of rehabilitation, drainage, 
which may include 7.5cm 
placement of topsoil, grading, 
seeding, tree protection or 
replacement.   
 

 
Agricultural, Commercial, Institutional, 
Industrial or Future Development fill areas 
greater than 4ha in area  
 
Includes 5 inspections, add’l inspection to 
be charged from general security at $75.00 
per inspection 
         

 
cost of rehabilitation, drainage, 
which may include 7.5cm 
placement of topsoil, grading, 
seeding, tree protection or 
replacement.   
  
 

 

80



Purpose of the Site Alteration Committee: 

 

Mandate 

To advise, record, and assist the Council and the Citizens of the Town of Erin in the protection, 

enhancement, restoration, management and appreciation of the Town’s natural rights-of-ways and 

lands, and to support the Town’s goals for environmental sustainability and a healthy environment in 

our rural and urban communities.  To act as a decision making body to hear concerns from Town of Erin 

residents regarding issues under the Town’s Site Alteration By-law. 

Membership 

The Site Alteration Committee shall be composed of a maximum of five (5) members, as follows: 

Two (2) Members of Town Council – concurrent with the term of Council  

(Mayor is an ex-officio Member of the Committee) 

Three (3) Citizen Members – appointed by Council each term 

The Town of Erin Consulting Engineer attends the Site Alteration Committee meetings to support the 

Chair and Committee Members in facilitating the meeting. 

Recruitment and Selection of Committee Members 

The Town will seek volunteers with farming expertise and/or community related experience. 

Site Alteration Committee Terms of Reference 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Meeting Dates, Quorum, Vacant Set, Call to Order, Voting, Motions, Minutes, Agenda, Town Policies, 

Guidelines and Procedures, References, Reports & Applicable By-Laws, Sunset/Terms of Reference 

Review Date. 

In conjunction with the Terms of Reference, the Town’s By-law No. 15-02 regarding Procedures and 

Rules for the Conduct of Committees, provides detailed information of the procedural protocols for 

Town Committees. 

The Citizen appointees to the Committee shall be interviewed by and recommended to Council by a 

Selection Committee consisting of one or more Members of Council.  Staff are designated and appointed 

as Inspectors by the Chief Building Official as stipulated in the Site Alteration By-law.  A Memo to Council 

is then prepared by the Chief Building Official advising them of the appointment. 

Chair and Vise Chair - The Chair shall be appointed by the Mayor from the Council Members appointed 

to the Committee. The Vise Chair shall be elected by the Committee. 

81



Meeting Dates – Times and dates for Site Alteration Committee Meetings are set by the Committee and 

may be altered or cancelled by the call of the Chair.  Meetings must be conducted in accordance with 

the Procedural By-law 15-02, unless otherwise specified in these terms of reference. 

Should Committee site visits be deemed necessary to evaluate an application, Building Department staff 

will coordinate with the owner(s) and/or agent(s) ensuring permission to enter the property is granted. 

Quorum – A quorum means 50% of the membership plus one. 

Vacant Seat – The position of a Member of the Site Alteration Committee becomes vacant if the 

Member is absent from the meetings for three (3) consecutive months without being authorized to do 

so by a recommendation of the Site Alteration Committee. 

Call to Order – The Chair shall call the meeting to order as soon after the hour fixed for the holding of 

the meeting provided quorum is present.  If no quorum is present, 15 minutes after the time appointed 

for a meeting, the names of the Members present shall be recorded and the meeting shall stand 

adjourned until the date of the next regular meeting.  In the absence of the Chair, the Vise-Chair shall 

assume the Chair and call the meeting to order. 

Voting/Motions – Members of the Committee must declare any pecuniary interest they may have in any 

matter under consideration by the Committee and must abstain from any discussion or voting on the 

matter.  In the event of a tie vote, the motion is lost.  Motions may be moved verbally except where the 

Chair requests that the motion be in writing and be reflected in the Minutes as action items. 

Agenda – Agendas will be distributed to Committee members and posted on the Town’s website at least 

one week prior to the scheduled meeting.  A comprehensive Agenda package will be distributed to the 

Site Alteration Committee Members that may accompany confidential documents and/or related 

resources.  This package will be provided on coloured paper, and/or water marked with the committee 

member’s name on the day of the Site Alteration meeting.  Once reviewed, the packages are to be 

returned to Administration for shredding. 

Town Policies, Guidelines and Procedures – Members of the Site Alteration Committee must adhere to 

all Town policies, guidelines and administrative procedures. 

Reference – Reports & Applicable By-laws 

Sunset Terms of Reference Review Date: December 2018 

82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



The Corporation of the Town of Erin 
 

By-Law # 15-11 
 

Being a By-law to appoint Mr. John Maddox, JGM 
Consulting as the Town of Erin Meeting Investigator 

pursuant to the agreement authorized under the 
County of Wellington By-law 5416-15, and to repeal 

By-law Number 11-48 
 

 
WHEREAS Section 239.2 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25 as amended 
authorizes municipalities to appoint an investigator who has the function to investigate a 
complaint made with respect to compliance of section 239 in respect of a meeting or part 
of a meeting that was closed to the public, and to report on the investigation; 
  
AND WHEREAS Council deems it desirable to appoint John Maddox as the Investigator to 
investigate all requests on behalf of the Municipality and its Local Boards; 
  
NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF TOWN OF ERIN HEREBY ENACTS AS 
FOLLOWS: 
  
1. That Council hereby appoints John Maddox as the independent Investigator to 

investigate in accordance with the legislation all requests for an investigation of the 
Council and Committees of the Municipality and the Local Boards and their 
Committees of the Municipality pursuant to Section 239.2(1) of the Act; 

 
2. The appointment shall be for an initial term of two years commencing the first day 

of January, 2015. 
 
3. An Agreement between Wellington County and John Maddox for shared  

investigative services attached hereto is hereby adopted, as authorized by the 
County of Wellington By-law 5416-15; 

  
4. By-law number 11-48 is hereby repealed. 
 
5. This By-law comes into force and effect on the day of its passing. 
 
 
 
 
Passed in open Council, on March 17th, 2015. 
  
 
            
         
 

    ____________________________ 
Mayor 

 
             
  

    ____________________________ 
Clerk 

90



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE Town of Erin 

 
BY-LAW NO. 15-12 

 

BEING A BY–LAW to authorize the execution of a tax arrears extension agreement pursuant to 

Section 378 of the Municipal Act, 2001. 

 

WHEREAS the Corporation of the Town of Erin registered on the 9th day of April, 2014, a tax 

arrears certificate against the land described in Schedule “A” attached hereto and forming part of 

this By–law; 

 

AND WHEREAS Section 378 of the Municipal Act, 2001 provides that after the registration of a 

tax arrears certificate and before the expiry of one (1) year following the date of the registration of 

the tax arrears certificate, a Municipality or Board may by By–law authorize an extension 

agreement with the owner of the land, the spouse of the owner, a mortgagee or a tenant in 

occupation of such land to extend the period of time in which the cancellation price in respect to 

the Owner’s land is to be paid; 

 

AND WHEREAS the statutory period within which such a By-law may be enacted has not 

elapsed; 

 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Erin enacts the following as a 

By–law: 

 

 1. THAT an agreement be entered into by The Corporation of the Town of Erin with 

Christopher Ian Sinclair, the Owner(s)/Spouse/Mortgagee/Tenant of the land described in 

Schedule “A” to extend the time period in which the cancellation price payable on this 

land is to be paid on the terms and generally in the form of Schedule “B” attached to this 

By-law; 

 

 2. THAT the agreement be in substantially the same form and contain the same terms and 

conditions as set out in Schedule “B”, a copy of which is attached hereto. 

 

 3 THAT the Mayor and Clerk be and are hereby authorized and directed to enter into the 

agreement on behalf of the Corporation; 

 

 3. THAT this By–law shall come into force and take effect upon the final passing thereof. 

 

 Passed in open Council on March 17th 2015. 
 
 

  
 MAYOR 

 
 
 

  
 CLERK 

 
 

91


	Agenda
	5.1 March 3, 2015 Regular Council Meeting
	Back to Agenda

	7.1 Kathryn Cooper, Transition Erin and Maddie Swan, Erin Water Rockers - Proposal for joint funding of refillable water stations at community centres
	Back to Agenda

	8.1.1 Water Superintendent - 2014 Drinking Water Systems Summary Reports
	Back to Agenda

	8.1.2 Water Superintendent - W4-2015 Water Meter Reader Position 
	Back to Agenda

	8.2.1 Fire Chief - January 2015 Monthly Report
	Back to Agenda

	8.3.1 Director of Finance - Tax Sale Extension Agreement
	Back to Agenda

	8.4.1 CAO - Site Alteration By-law Report
	Back to Agenda

	8.5.1 Ballinafad Community Centre - February 10, 2015 meeting minutes
	Back to Agenda

	9.1 Ted Arnott, Wellington-Halton Hills MPP - Letter to Minister of Environment and Climate Change
	Back to Agenda

	9.2 Ted Arnott, Welington-Halton Hills MPP - Requesting Council support to rename a portion of Hwy 6  to "Jack Johnson Memorial Highway"
	Back to Agenda

	13. By-Laws
	Back to Agenda


